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OUT20/9854 
 
 
 
Mark Arnold 
General Manager 
Byron Shire Council 
PO Box 219 
MULLUMBIMBY NSW 2482 
 
Natalie.hancock@byron.nsw.gov.au  
 
 
Dear Mr Arnold 
 
Additional Investigation Areas – Byron Shire Draft Residential Strategy 
 
Thank you for your correspondence dated 29 July 2020 inviting comment on proposed 
additional investigation areas to be included in the Byron Shire Draft Residential Strategy (the 
Strategy). The NSW Department of Primary Industries (NSW DPI) Agriculture is committed to 
the protection and growth of agricultural industries, and the land and resources upon which 
these industries depend.  
 
DPI Agriculture has reviewed the six proposed additional investigation areas. The inclusion 
of sites 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 as additional investigation areas in the Strategy raise no concerns for 
agriculture or agricultural land and resources. 
 
The inclusion of site 1 as an additional investigation area in the Strategy may not be 
appropriate. 
 
In our letter of 15 October 2019 we advised that DPI Agriculture considered that sites 16 and 
17 would not meet the Interim Important Farmland Variation Criteria as required in the North 
Coast Regional Plan 2036 due to their size and contiguity with adjacent farmland. It is noted 
that additional site 1 has been included due to it adjoining proposed investigation area 16. 
 
If Council excludes site 16 from the final Strategy then additional site 1 should also be 
excluded. However, if Council proceeds with the inclusion of area 16 then it is acknowledged 
that the inclusion of site 1 would result in the best planning outcome. 
 
The identification of regionally significant farmland for residential investigation purposes 
results in the incremental creep of urban land use upon this important resource. This is 
considered inconsistent with the North Coast Regional Plan 2036 and NSW Right to Farm 
Policy that seek to strengthen land use planning outcomes for agriculture and direct 
development away from important farmland. Whilst the strategic intent of identifying new 
residential investigation areas adjacent to existing urban areas is supported, the continued 
encroachment onto valuable farmland is not supported. 
 
The key considerations for residential investigation sites adjoining agricultural land are land 
use conflict risk and potential for increased flood affectation on adjoining agricultural land 
from new residential development. These issues will require detailed consideration at the 
planning proposal stage should the identified investigation areas be adopted and proceed. A 
Land Use Conflict Risk Assessment (LUCRA) will also be necessary at planning proposal 
stage. 



 

 

 
When considering new residential investigation areas which adjoin agricultural land Council 
should allow for the provision of a rural zoned buffer on the land being developed to mitigate 
potential future land use conflict and prevent further encroachment into important farmland. 
 
Should you require clarification on any of the information contained in this response, please 
contact Paul Garnett, Agricultural Land Use Planning Officer, on 0429 864 501 or by email at 
landuse.ag@dpi.nsw.gov.au  
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 

18/8/20 
Tamara Prentice 
Manager Agricultural Land Use Planning 
Department of Primary Industries - Agriculture 
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IRF20/3771 
 
 

Mr Mark Arnold 
General Manager 
Byron Shire Council 
PO Box 219 
MULLUMBIMBY NSW 2482 
 
Via email:  steve.daniels@byron.nsw.gov.au  

natalie.hancock@byron.nsw.gov.au 
 
 
Dear Mr Arnold 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on six additional proposed 
investigation areas in the Byron Shire Draft Residential Strategy.  
 
The Department of Planning Industry and Environment (Planning and Assessment 
Group) has reviewed the information supplied by Council in the context of the earlier 
submission from the Department dated 11 December 2019. The comments in this 
earlier submission remain valid as an updated draft Residential Strategy has not 
been provided to the Department for review.  
 
The following comments are limited to the additional six investigation areas that have 
been proposed by Council. 
 
Additional Site 1 should be considered in conjunction with Site 16 in the exhibited 
draft Residential Strategy. The potential impact of future residential development on 
regionally significant farmland will be a key consideration in relation to these sites at 
the planning proposal stage, should Council proceed to the investigation stage. 
Council is encouraged to consult with NSW Department of Primary Industries – 
Agriculture regarding the impact on regionally significant farmland. 
 
Proposed additional Sites 2, 3 and 4 are located within the Urban Growth Area 
boundary in the North Coast Regional Plan 2036. These sites are likely to have some 
residential development potential, notwithstanding local constraints. The Department 
has no objection to the possible inclusion of these sites for investigation in the 
Residential Strategy. 
 
Additional Site 5 is located in the Coastal Area and outside the Urban Growth Area 
boundary in the Regional Plan. The Site is also located on the fringe of a known 
coastal erosion risk area. It is recommended that Council consult with the 
Department of Planning Industry and Environment – Biodiversity Conservation 
Diversion to determine whether a review of the 2013 WBM Coastal Processes Study 
is necessary to accurately assess the level of risk posed to the site from long term 
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coastal erosion. If there is significant doubt, it is recommended that Council apply the 
precautionary principle. 
 
Additional Site 6 is located in an established environmental zone, outside the Urban 
Growth Area in the North Coast Regional Plan. Council will need to demonstrate that 
there will not be a significant impact from proposed future development on the 
environmental values of the site to justify a variation to the Urban Growth Area in this 
case. Council will also need to ensure any future planning proposals are consistent 
with the Northern Councils E Zone Review Final Recommendations Report. 
 
In summary, the Department supports Council’s ongoing consideration of additional 
Sites 1-4, subject to consideration of primary constraints such as flooding, mapped 
important farmland, cultural heritage, acid sulfate soils and bushfire risk.  
 
It is recommended that Council review the suitability of additional Sites 5 and 6 for 
residential development in consultation with the Department of Planning Industry and 
Environment – Biodiversity Conservation Diversion prior to identifying these sites in 
the Residential Strategy. It will be necessary to establish that primary constraints can 
be addressed for these sites to justify a variation to the Urban Growth Area boundary 
in the Coastal Area.  
 
As noted in the Department’s letter dated 11 December 2019, identified future urban 
growth areas should be consistent with the Regional Plan Urban Growth Area 
boundaries or include a further assessment against Urban Growth Area Variation 
Principles and the North Coast Settlement Planning Guidelines 2019. Any potential 
inconsistencies should be detailed and justified in Council’s submission of the final 
strategy for the Department’s approval.  
 
Future development of some investigation sites may not be supported and it would 
therefore be useful for the Strategy to also discuss alternative options for future 
housing.  
 
I look forward to the Department and Council continuing to work together towards the 
finalisation of the strategy. If you wish to discuss this matter in further detail, please 
contact Mr Peter Cameron at the Northern Region office on 65885518. 
 
Yours sincerely  

24-8-2020 

Jeremy Gray 
Director, Northern Region 
Local and Regional Planning  
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2 September 2020 
 
File No: NTH16/00110/06 
Your Ref: E2020/52292  
 
 
The General Manager 
Byron Shire Council 
PO Box 219 
MULLUMBIMBY NSW  2482 
 
Attention: Natalie Hancock 
 
 
Dear Madam, 
 
RE: Review of additional investigation areas for the draft Residential Strategy – 
Mullumbimby, Bangalow and Byron Bay 
 
I refer to your letter dated 29 July 2020 requesting comment from Transport for NSW (TfNSW) in 
relation to the abovementioned additions to the Draft Residential Strategy (the Strategy). 

 
TfNSW initial response to the Strategy dated 9 October 2019 identified the classification and 
importance of surrounding roads and our understanding of the relevant statutory considerations 
informing our comment. That response provided a number of comments for Council 
consideration.  
 
It is our understanding that the additional areas identified for inclusion as residential will be 
treated as Investigation Areas only. They are not proposed for rezoning this time, and criteria has 
been set for consideration and investigation in the future.  As such, TfNSW has no issue with the 
proposal but reiterates points from our previous correspondence including: 
 

 The proposed new release areas or infill housing area (increased density), if rezoned and 
developed have the potential to impact on the State and Regional road networks. The need to 
ensure sustainable transport networks are in place has been identified as a ‘theme’ on page 
22 of the Draft Strategy and it is assumed that this will apply to the future Investigation Areas. 

 Council is encouraged to work collaboratively with State government in identifying 
infrastructure needs to support growth in line with the Regional Plan. 

 A coordinated approach to the provision of appropriate road infrastructure is needed as it 
would be inappropriate (and cost-prohibitive) to expect one single developer to fund any 
significant upgrades required. 

 If housing is to be increased in the villages mentioned in the initial Strategy and those 
identified as additional areas, the employment strategies should reflect the level of increased 
residential accommodation proposed, to take pressure of the ‘regional’ road network and 
encourage short-length trips (via car or public transport). 

 The undeveloped area of land available for residential development on Ewingsdale Road 
needs to balance the need and timing against the provision of safe and efficient road 
networks.  
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If you have any further enquiries regarding the above comments please do not hesitate to contact 
Cheryl Sisson, Development Assessment Officer or the undersigned on (02) 6640 1362 or via 
email at: development.northern@rms.nsw.gov.au 
 
Yours faithfully, 

for Matt Adams 
Manager Land Use Assessment Northern 
Regional NSW and Outer Metropolitan 
Transport for NSW 
 

mailto:development.northern@rms.nsw.gov.au
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